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01 September, 2025
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Dear Sir / Madam,
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Sub.: Annual Report under Regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Please find Enclosed herewith annual report (Both standalone and consolidated) of our company
for the financial year ended 31.03.2025.

Kindly take the above information on record and acknowledge receipt.
Thanking You.

Yours faithfully,

For Swati Projects Limited

ch/\ Taks

Compliance Officer & Company Secretary
Name: Ravi Todi
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 42" Annual General Meeting of Members of M/s. Swati Projects Limited will be
held on Wednesday the 24 day of September, 2025 at 01:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing/ other Audio
Visual Means (“OVAM?”) to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements (Standalone and Consolidated) of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

Special Business:

2. To appoint Secretarial Auditor and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force) and basis the recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company,
Mrs. Shruti Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretaries, (Membership No: 38797),C.P. No. 14602 & Peer
Review Certificate No. 3206/2023 be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company, fora
term of five (5) consecutive financial years, commencing from the financial year 2025-26 to the financial
year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors.”

By Order of the Board
For Swati Projects Limited

Rowt

Ravi Todi
Company Secretary
Membership No. A49203

Kolkata, May 30, 2025



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332
1, Abdul Hamid Street, One BIS Building, 4 Floor, Room No. 407, Kolkata-700069

E mail: swatiprojectsitd@gmail.com
Phone: +91 9988796071

Notes:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘“MCA”) has, vide its General Circular dated September 19, 2024, read
together with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021,
December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022 and September 25, 2023 (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars”), permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (‘“AGM”/“Meeting”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM™), without physical presence of the members at a
common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) read with Rules made thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™), the AGM of the
Company is being held through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the registered office of
the Company.

2. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed
hereto.

3. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and
pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No.
02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance
of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing
(VC). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC.

4. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the
Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC and
participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

5. The Members can join the AGM in the VC mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation
at the AGM through VC will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

6. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC will be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of
remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the
Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using
g vhywill be provided by NSDL.
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8. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice
calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.swatiprojects.com. The Notice can
also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National StockExchange-of
India Limited-at www.bseindia.com and waww.nseindia-com respectively and the AGM Notice is also available
on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e., www.evoting.nsdl.com.

9. AGM has been convened through VC in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08,2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,
MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

10. A statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Act, relating to the Special Business to be
transacted at the AGM, is annexed hereto. Further, additional information as required under Listing Regulations
and Circulars issued thereunder are also annexed.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND J OINING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on 21% September, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 23" September, 2025
at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members,
whose names appear in the Registrar of Members/Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e.,
17t September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion
to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 17" September,
2025.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their
demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
holding securities in demat https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
mode with NSDL. On the e-Services home page click ¢ ‘Beneficial Owner” icon under
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“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you
to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value
added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https:/eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https:/www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless
voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

" App Store P Google Play

Individual Shareholders 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
holding securities in demat their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
mode with CDSL e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi

/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click
on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my
easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as

per the information provided by compasy™ igking the e-voting option,
: 2 o) & % 5 .
the user will be able to see e-Votin -Myting service provider




SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332
1, Abdul Hamid Street, One BIS Building, 4*" Floor, Room No. 407, Kolkata-700069

E mail: swatiprojectsitd@gmail.com
Phone: +91 9988796071

Website: www.swatiprojects.com

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the
user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available
at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
(holding securities in through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
demat mode) login through | Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
their depository Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL
participants Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-

Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for an technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in demat mode with helpdesk by sending a request at
CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-
21-09911
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities
in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at

hitps.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Your User ID is:

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or

Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is
IN300*** and Client ID is 12%*****
then your user ID is
IN3QQ**% ] 2%k kk%%

b) For Members who hold shares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat account with CDSL. .
For example if your Beneficiary ID is

[2%4%%%52nsn83%% then your user ID
iS 12**************

¢) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio
Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is

101456001 F & 7 o
1R, N\<

1

— -

- Kolkata) B
o - ~
}(S’ )

* X
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5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the “initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the “initial
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your
8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your “User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. Ifyouare unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL
or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

¢) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting(@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your
registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open, ===
<OI¥Cr,
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast vour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN" in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM”
link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs.agarwalshruti@gmail.com with a copy
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution/ Authority
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?" or “Physical
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and
022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share
certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PA HAR (self-attested scanned copy

of Aadhar Card) by email to swatiprojectsltd@gmail.com.
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2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to swatiprojectsltd@gmail.com. If you are an Individual
shareholder’s holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1

(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies. Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email 1D
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS
UNDER: -

a. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

b. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC facility and have not casted their vote
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e-Voting system in the AGM.

c. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.

d. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day
of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members
may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you
can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click
on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not
have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by
following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during
the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5 Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning
their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at swatiprojectsltd@gmail.com. The same
will be replied by the company suitably. ;
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The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date of 17" September, 2025.

The shareholders shall have one vote per equity shares held by them as on the cut-off date of 17™ September, 2025.
The facility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio/client id, irrespective of the number of joint holders.

Shweta Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. F11914, COP No. 21040) has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall within a period
not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period unblocks the votes in the presence of
at least two (2) witness not in the employment and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against,
if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The results declared shall be placed on the website
of Swati Projects Limited within two (2) days of passing of the resolution at the AGM of the Company and will be
communicated to The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE
Limited.

By Order of the Board
For Swati Projects Limited

Wi Lo
Ravi Todi

Company Secretary
Membership No. A49203

30% May, 2025
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND
CIRCULARS ISSUED THEREUNDER

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the special business proposed in this Notice:
Item no. 2

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) every listed entity shall undertake secretarial
audit and annex such report with the annual report of the listed entity. Further, pursuant to Regulation 24A of the
Listing Regulations, a listed entity is required to appoint a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary or a firm of
Company Secretary(ies) as a Secretarial Auditor with the approval of shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.
The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 30™ May, 2025 has, considering the expertise and experience and
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, recommended to the members of the Company, the appointment
of Mrs. Shruti Agarwal, Practising Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of
five (5) consecutive financial years commencing from the financial year 2025-26 to the financial year 2029-30 C.P.
No. 14602, Membership No. 38797 & Peer Review Certificate No. 3206/2023, a fellow member of the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India having experience of 10 years have consented to the appointment as Secretarial
Auditor, if appointed and have confirmed that they are eligible for appointment as a Secretarial Auditor and are
free from any disqualifications as specified by SEBI have also provided confirmation that she holds a valid
certificate of ‘Peer Review’ issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. Given the rich experience,
expertise and considerable time and effort involved, the proposed fee for the Secretarial Auditor for the financial
year 2025-26 is ¥ 15000/-, excluding applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses. The remuneration for the
subsequent years of their term shall be fixed by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval by the members.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER’S

Dear Members,

It is our pleasure in presenting the 42" Annual Report of the business and operations of your Company (“the
Company” or “Swati”) along with the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report of the Company for
the financial year ending 315 March, 2025. The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has
been referred to wherever required.

Financial Results

The summarized financial results for the year ending 31 March, 2025 are as under:

Financial Highlights (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue from operations 91,05,695 1,12,86,794 1,41,08,701 1,46,87,172
Other Income, net 64,000 - 93,151 12,992
Total Income 91,69,695 1,12,86,794 1,42,01,852 1,47,00,164
Less: Expenditure
Purchase - - 2,92,84,475 -
Change in Inventories - - -5,61,26,103 -
Employee Benefits | 14,65,335 11,80,544 57,92,360 27,09,217
Expenses
Depreciation 10,054 - 6,61,256 8,43,304
Other Expenses 16,36,906 23,59,117 3,12,61,271 37,65,964
Provision and | 82,889 - 82,889 -
Contingencies
Profit / (Loss) before Tax | 59,74,511 77,47,133 32,45,704 73,81,679
Income Tax 15,65,000 19,57,577 15,65,000 19,57,577
Tax for earlier years 32,57 479 - 32,57 479 0
Deferred Tax Assets 769 - -32,835 87,281
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 11,52,801 57,89,556 -15,43,940 55,11,383
Other Comprehensive
Income
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Gain/(Loss) on FVOCI | (76,72,933) | - (76,72,933) =
equities (Net)

Deferred Tax (Net) 19,31,124 - 19,31,124 -
Total comprehensive

Income attributable

Owners of the Parent - - (48,63,614) -
Non-controlling Interest | - - (2,85,138) -
Total Comprehensive | (45,89,008) |- (51,48,752) -
Income for the period

2. Performance Review

During the fiscal year ending 31% March, 2025, Total Income decrease by 18.76 % and Profit after tax is Rs. 11.53
Lakhs for the year FY 2024-2025 compared to a Profit of Rs. 57.90 Lakhs for the previous year for the standalone
financial statement and for the consolidated statement Total Income decrease by 3.39 % and Profit after tax is Rs.
(15.44) Lakhs for the year FY 2024-2025 compared to a Profit of Rs. 55.11 Lakhs for the previous year

3. State of Company’s Affairs

The Company has been registered with the Reserve Bank of India, in terms of Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and is carrying on NBFC activity of the business of Investment in Shares & Securities and Inter-
Corporate & Personal Loan. The Company is non-Deposit taking NBFC Company.

4. Change in the nature of business

There are no Changes in the nature of business of the company during the year under review.
5. Share Capital

The Company’s Paid-up Share Capital as on 31% March, 2025 was Rs. 10.10 Crores.

6. Transfer to Reserve

During the financial year the Company has not transferred to Statutory Reserves in terms of Section 45-IC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 due to loss.

7. Dividend
The Company has not made any provision for payment of dividend for the year under consideration.
8. Information on Material Changes And Commitments

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this Report.

9. Performance & financial position of Subsidiary Company (ies), Associates and Joint Ventures

The Company have two subsidiary companies — Radhashree Roadsters Pvt. Ltd. And Radhashree Apartments Pvt.
Ltd.
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10. Financial Highlights of Radhashree Roadsters Pvt. Ltd.

Particulars As at March 31,

2025 2024
Revenue from operations 56,26,380 34,00,378
Other Income, net 29,151 12,992
Total Income 56,55,531 34,13,370

Less: Expenditure

Employee Benefits Expenses | 20,31,995 15,28,673
Depreciation 6,37,352 8,43,304
Other Expenses 23,89,919 14,06,847
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 50,59,266 (3,65,454)
Income Tax = =
Deferred Tax Assets 32,066 87,281
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 6,28,331 (2,78,173)

11. Financial Highlights of Radhashree Apartments Pvt. Ltd.

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars

Revenue from operations -

Other Income, net -
Total Income E
Less: Expenditure
Cost of Materials Consumed | 2,92,84,475

Change in Inventories of | (5,61,26,103)

Finished Goods

Employee Benefits Expenses | 22,95,030
Finance Costs 27,87,379
Depreciation 13,851

Other Expenses 2,50,70,441
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Profit / (Loss) before Tax (33,25,073)
Income Tax -
Deferred Tax Assets -
Profit / (Loss) after Tax (33,25,073)

12. Performance Review of Subsidiary Company

During the fiscal year ending 31* March, 2025, Total income increased by 39.65 % and Profit after tax is Rs.
(26.97) Lakhs for the year FY 2024-2025 compared to a Profit after Tax of Rs. (2.78) Lakhs for the previous year.

13. Internal Financial Controls

Your Company has in place an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of its operations. The
internal control system comprising of policies and procedures is designed to ensure sound management of your
Company’s operations, safekeeping of its assets, optimal utilisation of resources, reliability of its financial
information and compliance. Clearly defined roles and responsibilities have been institutionalised. Systems and
procedures are periodically reviewed to keep pace with the growing size and complexity of your Company’s
operations.

During the financial year under review, no material or serious observation has been received from Statutory
Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company on such controls.

14. Particulars of loans, guarantee or investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the Provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

15. Particulars of Related Party Transaction as per Sec. 188(1)

All the related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis and are in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with any
of its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which have potential conflict of interest of
the company at large. All related party transactions as required under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 are
provided in FORM - AOC 2 as Annexure II to this report.

16. Deposits

The Company did not accept any deposits during FY 2024-2025, falling within the purview of section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

17. Change in Registered office of the Company

During the year, the company has changed its registered office from 168B, Jamunalal Bajaj Street, Kolkata -
700007 to 1, Abdul Hamid Street, One BIS Building, 4® Floor, Room No.407, Kolkata — 700069 w.e.f. 27" of
September, 2024.
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18. Acquisition of Majority Stake
During the year the company has acquired 76% stakes in Radhashree Apartments Private Limited.

At the Board meeting held on 27™ September, 2024, Board of Directors approved acquisition of majority stake i.e.
76% in a Real Estate company namely Radhashree Apartments Private Limited. Acquisition was completed on
11" December 2024 and accordingly the exchanges are intimated on 12 December, 2024, (Pursuant to Regulation
30 of SEBI LODR 2015).

19. Brief details of the company

M/s Radhashree Apartments Private Limited CIN U45400WB2012PTC180511, having its registered office at 13,
Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 2nd Floor, Kolkata— 700013. It is constructing a building under Joint Venture agreement
with Mr. Joydeep Banerjee and others on a land area of 38 Kattha at 30 Motilal Basak Lane Kolkata 700054. The
Project is named “Radhashree 30" with 44 residential flats and 34 Car Parking spaces. Saleable area in the project
58768 Sq. Ft. The ratio in the Joint Venture is developer 60% and land owner 40%. Out of 44 Flats, 19 flats have
been booked till 31.03.2025. Company has Incurred Rs. 13,37,17,902/-as project cost till 31/03/2025.

Family Members and Group Companies of one of the promoter Group Company namely M/s Ganpati Stocks
Private Limited (having 5,00,000 equity shares i.e. Less than 5% of M/s Swati Projects Limited) has 79% stake in
the Company. M/s Swati Projects has bought 17.88% stake from one existing shareholder namely Randar
Businesses Private Limited and subscribed to 8,12,500 equity shares of Rs, 10/-each in right issue of share. Same
was done at Arm’s Length.

20. Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual
evaluation of its own performance and of the individual Directors as well as an evaluation of the working of
all the Committees of the Board. The Board of Directors was assisted by the NRC. The performance
evaluation was carried out by seeking inputs from all the Directors / Members of the Committees, as the case
may be.

The Board of the Company followed the criteria as specified in the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™) for evaluating the performance of the Board
as a whole, Committees of the Board, Individual Directors and the Chairman. The criteria for evaluation of
the Board as a whole, inter alia, covered parameters such as Structure of the Board, Meetings of the Board,
Functions of the Board and Board & Management. The criteria for evaluation of Individual Directors covered
parameters such as knowledge and competency, fulfilment of functions, ability to function as a team, etc.
The criteria for evaluation of the Board Committees covered areas related to mandate and composition,
effectiveness of the Committee, structure of the Committee and meetings, etc.

The feedback of the Independent Directors on their review of the performance of Non-Independent Directors
and the Board as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company and the assessment of the
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company, the Management and the
Board which was taken into consideration by the Board in carrying out the performance evaluation.

21. Policy on Appointment of Directors and Remuneration Policy of The Company

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC™) develops the competency requirements of the
Board based on the industry and the strategy of the Company, conducts a gap analysis and recommends the
reconstitution of the Board, as and when required. It also recommends to the Board, the appointment of
Directors having good personal and professional reputation and conducts reference checks and due diligence
of all Directors before recommending them to the Board. Besides the above, the NRC ensures that the new
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Directors are familiarized with the operations of the Company and endeavours to provide relevant training
to the Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors have adopted a Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes and a Remuneration Policy.

The Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes has been framed to encourage diversity of thought,
experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender in the Board and to have in place, a transparent Board
nomination process.

The Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMPs and all other employees is aligned to the philosophy on the
commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust.

The Remuneration Policy aims to ensure that the level and composition of the remuneration of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
them to successfully run the Company.

Salient features of the Remuneration Policy, inter alia, includes:

* Remuneration in the form of Sitting Fees and Commission to be paid to Independent Directors and
Non- Independent Non-Executive Directors, in accordance with the provisions of the Act and as
recommended by the NRC;

* Remuneration to Managing Director / Executive Directors / Key Managerial Personnel and all other
employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to run the Company
successfully and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for their roles, in accordance with
the defined terms of remuneration mix or composition; and

* No remuneration would be payable to Directors for services rendered in any other capacity unless
the services are of a professional nature and the NRC is of the opinion that the Director possesses
requisite qualification for the practice of the profession and approval of the Central Government has
been received, if required, for paying the same.

The Company has also adopted a “Fit and Proper” Policy for ascertaining the fit and proper’ criteria to be
adopted at the time of appointment of directors and on a continuing basis. The Company has received the
*Fit and Proper’ declarations from all the Directors of the Company in April 2022, which have been taken
on record by the NRC.

22. Board and Committees

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and strategies. During
the financial year under review, the Board met 9 (Nine) times.

23. Audit Committee

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the internal controls put in place to ensure
that the accounts of your Company are properly maintained and that the accounting transactions are in accordance
with prevailing laws and regulations. In conducting such reviews, the Committee found no material discrepancy
or weakness in the internal control system of your Company. The Committee has also reviewed the procedures
laid down by your Company for assessing and managing the risks.

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee met (Four) times to deliberate on various matters and
the gap between any two Meeting was not more than 120 (One Hundred Twenty) days. The required quorum was
present in all the Meetings.
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During the financial year under review, Audit Committee Meeting was held on 29" May 2024, 14" August, 2024,
14" November, 2024 and 10 January, 2025.

24. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) Members are Independent Directors.

During the financial year under review, the Committee meeting was held on 29" May, 2024, 14 August, 2024,
27" December, 2024 & 11 March, 2025 and all the members were present.

25. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Your Company has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee pursuant to the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 which comprises of three Non-Executive Directors.

During the financial year under review, the Committee meeting was held on 29th May, 2024, 14th August, 2024.
26. Management Discussion and Analysis Report

As required under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report is enclosed as Annexure III to this report.

27. Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of Independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

28. Details of Directors/KMP who have appointed or resigned during the year
During the financial year, details of Directors or Key Managerial Persons (KMP) are resigned and appointed: -

At the Board Meeting held on 14" of August, 2024, Shri Anurag Daga (DIN 05239623) and Mrs. Vatsala Daga
(DIN 08820036) resign from the directorship of the company.

At the Board Meeting held on 27" August, 2024, Board approved re-appointment of Mr. Shreegopal Daga (DIN
00397379) as Managing Director of the company for the term of Five (5) year w.e.f. 01 August, 2024 to 31% July,
2029, on expiry of his existing terms on 31% July, 2024, subject to approval of members of the company in
forthcoming General Meeting.

At the 41% Annual General Meeting held on 26" September, 2024, shareholders of the company approve re-
appointment of Mr. Shreegopal Daga (DIN 00397379) as Managing Director of the company vide special
resolution.

At the 41* Annual General Meeting held on 26" September, 2024, shareholders of the company approve re-
appointment of Mr. Rishi Kapoor (DIN 08422654) as Independent Director of the company for a second term of
Five (5) constitutive years w.e.f. 07 May, 2024, till the conclusion of 46" Annual General Meeting to be held in
the year 2029.

At the Board Meeting held on 27" December, 2024, Mr. Shashi Kumar resigns from the post of Chief Financial
Officers of the company w.e.f. 01 of January, 2025.

At the Board Meeting held on 10® January, 2025, Company has appointed Mr. Piyush Lakhotia as Chief Financial
official of the company w.e.f. 10 January, 2025.
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At the Board Meeting held on 11" March, 2025, Company has appointed Mrs. Shikha Gupta (DIN 10654047) and
Mrs. Puja Shaw (DIN 10944367) as Additional Independent Women Director of the company not liable to retire
by rotation for a tenure of Five (5) consecutive years subjects to approval of the shareholders of the company at
the assuring General Meeting.

Details of Commission received by MD or WTD of the company during the financial year 197(14).

During the financial year, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons (KMP) has received any commission
from the Company.

29. Key Managerial Personnel

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) and 203 of the Act, read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Sri Piyush Lakhotia, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Sri
Ravi Todi, Company Secretary (CS), are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Extracts of Annual Return for the financial year as per Section 92(3), MGT-9

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 9 as a part of the Annual Report Annexure 1.

A copy of the Annual Return will be hosted on the website of the Company as https://www.swatiprojects.com.

30. Details regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Information required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

31. Details of Vigil Mechanism

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, the Company has formulated a vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees to
report genuine concerns.

32. Corporate Governance

Your Company believes Corporate Governance is at the core of shareholder satisfaction. Your Company’s
governance practices are described separately in this Annual Report. Your Company has obtained a certification
from M Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, on our compliance with Listing Agreement read with SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 with Indian Stock Exchanges. This certificate
is attached to the Report on Corporate Governance.

33. Auditors
Statutory Auditors:

At the Annual General Meeting held on 26™ September, 2024, M/s. M Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 319141E & Membership No. 054366), be and hereby appointment as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company, for a period of Two (2) years to hold office from the conclusion of the 41% Annual General Meeting
till 43 Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 204(1) of the Act read with Rule 9 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mrs Shruti Agarwal, a practicing
Company Secretary (C. P. No. 14602, Membership No. 38797 & Peer Review Certificate No. 3206/2023)
Kolkata, as Secretarial Auditor of the company to hold office for a first term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the
conclusion of the 42nd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the company until the conclusion of the 47th AGM
to be held in the year 2030, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuring 42nd AGM of the company
to be held in the year 2025.

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the financial year under review, as received from Shruti Agarwal,
a practicing Company Secretary, is attached as Annexure IV of the Board’s Report.

Internal Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014, the Company
has appointed M/s. J. P. Lakhotia & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 312061E & Membership
No. 050529), as Internal Auditor of the Company.

34. Audit Observations
Auditors’ observations are suitable explained in notes to the Accounts and are self-explanatory.
Auditors’ Report

The Auditors of the Company has not made any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in his
Audit Report for the relevant financial year.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditors has
reported to the Audit Committee, under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in
the Board’s Report.

35. Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the Company.

36. Particular of Employees

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details, as required under Section 197(12) of the Act, read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

i.  Remuneration paid to Managing Director:
a. Sri Shreegopal Daga — Rs. 2,46,000.00 p.a.
ii. Remuneration paid to Other Directors is NIL
iii. ~ Remuneration paid to KMP:
a. Sri Ravi Todi, Company Secretary — Rs. 6,00,000.00 p.a.
b. Sri Shashi Kumar, Chief Financial Officer — 3,34,544.00 p.a.
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c. Sri Piyush Lakhotia, Chief Financial Officer — 60,000 for two(2) month
iv.  The number of permanent employees on the payroll of the Company is NIL.
v.  The average increase of remuneration of employees is normal.

vi.  The variation in the market capitalization is nil. As there is no change in market quotation of shares of the
company during the year, as no trade in shares took place.

vii.  The remuneration has been paid as per remuneration policy of the Company.

viii. ~ No employee of the company employed throughout / part of the financial year was paid monthly salary
more than Rs. 5 Lakh per month or Rs. 60 Lakhs in aggregate.

37. Disclosure about Cost Audit

Cost Audit and maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the Company.

38. Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company is in adherence of applicable Secretarial Standards.

39. Directors Responsibility Statements

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 Director of your company hereby state and confirm that: -

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31% March 2025, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made Judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of financial year and of the profit of the Company for the same period;

¢. The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. They have laid down internal financial controls in the company that are adequate are were operating
effectively;

f. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and these
are adequate and are operating effectively.

40. Statutory Disclosure

None of the Directors of your Company are disqualified as per provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act,
2013.

Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made
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thereunder. The Policy aims to promote a healthy work environment and to provide protection to employees at the
workplace and redress complaints of sexual harassment and related matters thereto.

41. Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators

During the financial year there were no orders from regulators or courts affecting the going concern of the
company. There were no disputes/appeals with various statutory authorities impacting the financial position of the
company. But BSE has imposed a penalty detail of which is given below:

On 17™ March, 2025 BSE has imposed a penalty of Rs. 3,24,500/- (including GST) under Regulation 17(1) Non-
compliance with the requirements pertaining to the composition of the Board including failure to appoint woman
director which the company has complied with provision by appointing Two (2) as an Additional Independent
Women Director on 11 March, 2025 and also paid the fine of Rs. 3,24,500/- (including GST) on 7t April, 2025.

42. Know Your Customer (KYC) Norms

Board approved KYC & AML Policy in place. The said Policy is in line with RBI guidelines. The Company
has furnished the details of Principal Officer and designated Director to Financial Intelligence Unit (FIU).

43. Fair Practice Code

Your Company has in place a Fair Practice Code (FPC), which includes guidelines on appropriate staff
conduct when dealing with customers and on the organisation’s policies vis-a-vis client protection. The Fair
Practice Code captures the spirit of the RBI guidelines on fair practices for NBFCs.

44. RBI Regulations and Compliance

Your Company continues to carry on its business of Non-Banking Finance Company as a Non-Deposit taking
Company and follows RBI norms as applicable.

45. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore,
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

46. Indian Accounting Standards Followed by the Company

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, as notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Act.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The
Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial.
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Your directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, employees, lender and bankers for their
consistent support and encouragement to the Company. We are sure you will join our directors in conveying our
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dedication and competence have ensured that the Company will be a significant player in Business.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Swati Projects Limited For Swati Projects Limited
Shreegopal Daga \ Amit Lal

Managing Director Director

DIN: 00397379 DIN: 09469579

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30™ May, 2025
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Company Registration Details

The Company is registered in the State of West Bengal, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to
the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L65993WB1983PLC036332.

Maintenance of Shares

The Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent is M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited having their registered
office at 3A, Auckland Place, 7™ Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata— 700 017.

Annual Report

The Annual Report containing inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Director’s Report, Auditor’s Report and other
important information is circulated to members and other entitled thereto.

Listing on Stock Exchange

The Company’s Shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) Calcutta Stock Exchange of India Limited
(CSE) and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI).

Payment of Listing Fees & Depository Fees

Annual Listing Fees for the year 2024-25 was paid on 17" August, 2024 to the Calcutta Stock Exchange of India
Limited (CSE), 22™ April, 2024 to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India (MSEI) and 17" April, 2024 to the
BSE Limited.

Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2024-25 was paid on 01% April, 2024 by the Company to National Securities
Depositories Limited (NSDL) and 26 April, 2024 by the Company to Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL).

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system by Securities
Exchange Board of India for debt listing. The salient features of this system are centralized database of all
complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by
investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. Till the date of the report the status of the investor
complain is NIL.

Green Initiative

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had taken the Green Initiative in Corporate Governance by allowing paperless
compliances by Companies through electronic mode.

Your Company supports the Green Initiative and has accordingly decided to send all communications to its
shareholders to their respective registered E-mail addresses.

Your Company appeals to you, its shareholders, who are yet to register your E-mail addresses that they take
necessary steps for registering same so that you can also become a part of the initiative and contribute towards a
greener environment.
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Distribution of Equity Shares

Distribution of Holdings (No. of Shares)

SL No. | No. of Shares No. of Holders | % To Total | Total Shares | % of Total
I 1500 18107 92.1148 14,38,734 | 14.2449
7. 501 - 1000 1139 5.7944 8,30,624 8.2240

T 1001 — 5000 353 1.7958 7,12,841 7.0578

4. 5001 — 10000 31 0.1577 2.12,286 2.1018

5 10001 — 50000 15 0.0763 3,18,995 3.1584
6. 50001 — 100000 2 0.0102 1,55,880 1.5434

7 100001 — And above 10 0.0509 64,30,640 63.6697
TOTAL 19,657 100.0000 1,01,00,000 | 100.0000
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Annexure I

Form No.MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,

2014]
I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN L65993WB1983PLC036332
Registration Date 20" May, 1983
Name of the Company M/s. Swati Projects Limited
Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by Shares / Non-govt.
Company

Address of the Registered office and contact | 1, Abdul Hamid Street, One BIS Building,
details 4th Floor, Room No. 407, Income Tax

Building, Kolkata — 700069

Whether listed company Yes

Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE)
Metropolitan Stock Exchange (MSEI)
BSE Limited (BSE)

Name, Address and Contact details of | Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 3A, Auckland Place, 7% Floor,
Room No. 7A & &B, Kolkata-700017
Phone: 033-22357270/7271 Email:

nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: -

Sr. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the|% to total turnover of the
No. | products/ services Product/ service company

1 NBFC — Non-Deposits Taking | 6492 100%
Providing Loans
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II. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

- and | CIN/GLN Holding/ % of | Applicable
| Subsidiary Sh?(rles Section
/Associate | H€ 4

'U63030WB2016PTC215627 | Subsidiary | 100% 2(87)(ii)

Roadsters
Private
Limited

2 Radhashree | U45400WB2012PTC180511 Subsidiary | 76% 2(87)(ii)
Apartments
Pvt Ltd

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Shareholding

[Categoryof No. of Shares held at the beginning of | No. of Shares held at the end of the year | % Change
Shareholders the year | during the
i year

Individual/ HUF | 16,722 | - 16,7220 | 16.55 | 16722 | - 16,72.20 | 16556 | -
00 0 6 00 0

Central Govt. - = 2 S » = = - -

State Govt.(s) - - - - - = - s S

Bodies Corp 737,12 |- 737,120 | 7.298 | 737.12 | - 737,120 | 7.298 |-
0 0

Banks / FI - - B = = | = " "

Any Other - - - = - 2 = . -

Sub-total (A)(1): - | 24,093 | - 24,0932 | 23.85 | 24,093 |- 24,0932 | 23.855 |-
20 0 5 20 0

e

=== t__;‘;,*_l}_ :_ b

NRIs-Individuals | - s - : - . a . -

Other-Individuals | - = - - = : - - K
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Website:

Bodies Corp.

Banks / FI

Any Other....

Sub-total(A)(2): -

Total Promoter
Shareholding
(A)=(AXT) =+
(A)2)

24,09,3
20

24,09,32
0

24,09,3
20

24,09,32
0

23.855

Public
Shareholding

Institutions

Mutual Funds

Banks / FI

Central Govt.

State Govt.(s)

Venture
Funds

Capital

Insurance
Companies

FlIs

Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1)

2. Non Institutions

Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian

(ii) Overseas

36,00,1
60

36,00,16
0

35.64

33,60,7
92

33,60,79
2

33275

-2.370

Individuals

@) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

3756

4,89,
600

4,93,356

4.857

26,88.4
43

4,88,8
30

31,77.27
3

31.458

26.573
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(ii) Individual
shareholders
holding  nominal
share capital in 35971 |- 35,97,16 | 35.61 | 11,31,1 |- 11,31,13 | 11.199 -24.416
excess of Rs 1 lakh | 64 4 5 34 4
Others(Specify) - - - - = - = = -
1.NRI < e = = 21481 |- 21481 0.213 0.213
Sub-total (B)(2) 72,01,0 | 489, | 76,90,68 | 76.14 | 72,01,8 | 4,88,8 | 76,90,68 | 76.145 -

80 600 |0 5 50 30 0
Total Public | 72,01,0 | 489, | 76,90,68 | 76.14 | 75,01,8 | 4,88,8 | 76,90,68 | 76.145 -
Shareholding 80 600 |0 5 50 30 0
(B)=(B)(1) +
(B)(2)
C. Shares held by | - - - - - - - - -
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 96,104 | 4,89, | 1,01,00, |100.0 |96,11,1 | 4,888 1,01,00, | 100.000 | -
(A+B+C) 00 600 | 000 00 70 30 000
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters

S | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the | Shareholding at the end of

r. | Name beginning of the year the year
N
No. off % of | %of No. %  of | %of %
Share| total Shares of total Shares change
S Shares | Pledged / | Shar | Shares | Pledged / | in
of the | encumbe |es of the | encumbe | shareho
compa | red to compa | red to | Iding
ny total ny total during
shares shares the year
Anurag Daga | 3600 | 0.036 - 3600 | 0.036 - -
(ADWPD3057D)
Shreegopal Daga | 81480 | 0.807 - 81480 | 0.807 - -
(AALHS2654D)
Shreegopal Daga | 64200 | 0.636 - 10044 | 9.945 - -
(ADWPD3061H) 00
Sudha Daga | 94020 | 9.309 - - - - -

(ADWPD3060G) |0

Vatsala Daga | 58272 | 5.770 - 58272 | 5.770 - -
(ADPPM4670G) 0 0

Vinal Investments | 23712 | 2.348 - 23712 | 2.348 - -
Limited 0 0

(AABCV1555F)

Ganpati Stocks | 50000 | 4.950 - 50000 | 4.950 - -
Private Limited | 0 0

(AABCGI1598F)

Total 24093 | 23.855 - 24093 | 23.855 - -

20 20
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iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning ofthe | Cumulative Shareholding during
no year the year
No. of shares % of total shares | No. of shares % of total shares
of the company of the company
At the beginning of the year 2409320 23.855 2409320 23.855

Date wise Increase / Decrease in | - - - -
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/ Decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat

equity etc):

At the End of the year 2409320 23.855 2409320 23.855

V. INDEBTEDNESS: NIL

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposits Total
exclm.img Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of | - - : =
the financial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not

Total (i + ii +iii) - - - -

Change in Indebtedness during | - - - 2
the financial year

- Addition
- Reduction

Net Change - - 2 =

Indebtedness at the - - = =
end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i +ii + iii) - E - -
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SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

VI.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNAL
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

SI.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total Amount

Gross salary

(2)Salary as per provisions contained in
section17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax
Act, 1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income Tax Act, 1961

Shreegopal Daga (Managing Director)
2,46,000.00

2,46,000.00

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit

- Others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total(A)

2,46,000.00

2,46,000.00

Remuneration to other directors: NIL

SL
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total

Amount

Independent Directors

-Fee for attending board, committee meetings
-Commission

- Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

-Fee for attending board, committee meetings

-Commission
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-Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total(B)= (1+2)

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

SL.
no.

Particulars of

Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Coﬁpany
Secretary
(Ravi Todi)

CFO

(Shashi
Kumar)

CFO

(Piyush
Lakhotia)

Total

Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisions contained | -
in section17(1) of the Income-tax

Act, 1961

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)

Income-tax Act, 1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) | -

Income-tax Act, 1961

6,00,000.00

3,34,544.00

60,000.00

9,94,544.00

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit

-others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total

6.,00.000.00

3.34,544.00

60,000.00

9,94,544.00
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDINGOFOFFENCES:

Type Section Brief description Details of | Authori | Appeal made. If
of the Penalty/ ty[RD | any(give details)
e banl Punishment/ | /NCLT
es Act :
Compounding | /Court]
fees imposed
Company
Penalty - - - -
Punishment - - = =
Directors
Penalty - - - -
Punishment - - = . g
Other Officers In Default
Penalty - - : - R
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - E & _
By Order of the Board of Directors
For Swati Projects Limited For Swati Projects Limited
% A’(/(
vV é&r&%}/{
Shreegopal Daga Amit Lal
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00397379 DIN: 09469579

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30" May, 2025
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Form No. AOQC-2

Annexure - II

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third
proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
®
(8)
(h)

For Swati Projects Limited

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship - N.A.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions - N.A.

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions- N.A.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any - N.A.

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions- N.A.

Date(s) of approval by the Board - N.A.

Amount paid as advances, if any - N.A.

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section
188- N.A.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

S.N. | Particulars Details
(@) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship N.A
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions N.A
(¢) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions N.A.
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including | N.A
the value, if any.
(e) | Date(s) of Approval by the Board N.A.
() | Amount paid as advance, if any N.A.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Shreegopal Daga
Managing Director
DIN: 00397379

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30'® May, 2025

For Swati Projects Limited

Rt

Amit Lal
Director
DIN: 09469579
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Managing Director and CFO Certification
To Whom It May Concern

We, Shreegopal Daga, Chairman & Managing Director & Piyush Lakhotia, Chief Financial Officer certify that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31% March, 2025 and to the
best of our knowledge and belief:

a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended 31*
March, 2025 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies
in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed to the auditors
and the Audit Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

4. i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year under
reference;

i) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes
to the financial statements; and

iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of the management
or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30% May, 2025

g EL’EAJ_J N La—lb\ar\\ %

L=

(Shreegopal Daga) (Piyush Lakhotia)
Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A)Company’s Philosophy

The Company’s policies, practices and philosophy adopted since inception are in line with Corporate
Governance. These policies, practices are required14 periodically to ensure its effective compliance. The
Composition of Board of Directors is well balanced with a view to manage the affairs of the Company
efficiently and professionally.

B) Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company have an optimum combination of Non-Executive and
Independent Directors who have in depth knowledge of the business. The Board of Director consist of
Six Directors.

C)Meetings and Attendance

The Meeting of the Board are generally held at the corporate office of the Company at located at 1, Abdul
Hamid Street, One BIS Building, 4th Floor, Room No. 407, Kolkata-700069. During the year under
review, Nine Board meetings were held on during the financial year from 1% April 2024 to 31% March
2025. The dates on which meetings were held are as follows: 29/05/2024, 14/08/2024, 27/08/2024,
04/09/2024, 27/09/2024, 14/11/2024, 27/12/2024, 10/01/2025 and 11/03/2025

Name of the Director Attendanc % of

e at the| No. Board held jand Attendance

Last AGM | of Meeting

Held tenur

on e

26/08/2024 1. 2. B 4. [5. 6. 7. 8. 9.
Mr. SHREEGOPAL Y Y Y Y Y ¥y Y ¥y 100.00%
DAGA
Mr. RISHI KAPOOR Y Y Y ¥ Y Y Y YRy 100.00%
Mr. AMIT LAL Y Y Y [Y Y b/ Y ¥ Y 100.00%
Mr. AVINASH JAIN X X Y [Y Y Y ¥ Y Y |Y 100.00%
Mrs. PUJA SHAW NA NA NANA [NA [NA NA |NA [NA[NA [0%
Mrs. SHIKHA GUPTA | NA NA [NA NA [NA |NA NA A | NANA | 0%

Board Agenda

The Board meetings are scheduled well in time and Board members are given a notice of Seven days before
the meeting date except in case of emergent meeting. The Board members are provided with well-structured
and comprehensive agenda papers.

D) Independent Directors

The Company has complied with the definitions of Independence as per Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and according to the Provisions of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332
1, Abdul Hamid Street, One BIS Building, 4" Floor, Room No. 407, Kolkata-700069

E mail: swatiprojectsitd@gmail.com
Phone: +91 9988796071

Website: www.swatiprojects.com

------ - - B B

E) Independent Directors Meetings
During the Year under review, the Independent Director Met on 24™ February 2025, inter alia to discuss: -
* Evaluation of the Performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a Whole;

» Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

F) Shareholding of Directors
Names No. of Shares held

Mr SHREEGOPAL DAGA| 10,04,400

Mr RISHI KAPOOR Nil
Mr. AMIT LAL Nil
Mr. AVINASH JAIN Nil
Mrs PUJA SHAW Nil

Mrs. SHIKHA GUPTA Nil

G) General Body Meetings
The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

Financial Year Date Location

2020-2021 30/09/2021 Video Conferencing
2021-2022 08/09/2022 Video Conferencing
2022-2023 27/09/2023 Video Conferencing
2023-2024 26/09/2024 Video Conferencing

H) Disclosures
There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. promoters, directors, relatives, the
management, subsidiaries etc that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the company at large.

There has been some delay in Certain compliances which has been regularize by the Company for which
necessarypayments levied by the BSE has been made.

I) Means of Communication

The Company regularly interacts with the shareholders through multiple channels of communication
such as publication of results on quarterly, half yearly basis and yearly basis. The results are not sent
individually to Shareholders.

The company has developed its website. All information relating to shareholder and public at large
can be viewed bylogging into the Website.

J) Code of Conduct

The Company has laid down the code of conduct for its directors. The object of the code is to conduct the
company’sbusiness ethically and with responsibility, integrity, fairness, transparency and honesty.
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K) Registrar and Transfer Agents and Share Transfer System

M/s Niche Technologies Pvt Ltd is your Company’s Share Transfer Agent. Share transfer in physical
form and othercommunications regarding shares, Change of Address etc may be addressed to

M/s Niche Technologies Pvt Ltd
3A Auckland Place,

7" Floor, Room No. 7A and 7B,
Kolkata-700017

Phone: - 033-22806616
E mail Id: - nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

Trading in Equity shares of the Company is permitted as demat as well as physical form. Shares sent for transfer in
physical form are registered and returned with in a period of 30 Days from the date of receipt of the documents,
provided the documents are valid and complete in all respects. With a view to expediting the process of share
transfers Mr. Ravi Todi, Company Secretary of the Company, severally authorized to approve transfer of equity
shares and the same shall be ratified in the next meeting of shareholders/ Investors Grievance Committee. The
shareholders/ Investors Grievance Committee meets as and when required to consider the other transfer,
transmission of shares etc and to attend shareholder Grievance.

L) Distribution of Shareholding
The Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025 was as follows:

SL No. | No. of Shares No. of Holders | % To Total | Total Shares | % of Total
L 1-500 18107 92.1148 14,38,734 14.2449
2. 501 -1000 1139 5.7944 8,30,624 8.2240

3. 1001 — 5000 353 1.7958 7,12,841 7.0578

4. 5001 — 10000 31 0.1577 2,12,286 2.1018

5. 10001 — 50000 15 0.0763 3,18,995 3.1584

6. 50001 — 100000 2 0.0102 1,55,880 1.5434

7 100001 — And above 10 0.0509 64,30,640 63.6697
TOTAL 19,657 100.0000 1,01,00,000 | 100.0000
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A) Details of Shareholding as on March 31, 2025 was as

under: -SHAREHOLDINGPATTERN

g of | No. of Shares held at the end of the year |

Individual/ HUF | 16,722 | - 16,72,20 | 1655 | 16,72.2 | - 16,7220 | 16556 |-

00 0 6 00 0
Central Govt. - - = = = B K A X
State Govt.(s) - - - = S = 3 = 5
Bodies Corp T2 |- 7,37,120 | 7.298 | 7,37,12 | - 7,37,120 | 7.298 -
0 0
Banks / FI - - - = « - 5 . -
Any Other - - - = s . = - -
Sub-total (A)(1): - | 24,09.3 | - 24,0932 | 23.85 | 24,093 | - 24,0932 | 23.855 |-
20 0 5 20 0

Other-Individuals | - - - - 3 2 u - =
Bodies Corp. - - - - . e = = 5
Banks / FI - - - - - = - s "
Any Other.... - - 5 = z = = = 5
Sub-total(A)(2):- |- - - - - - = " o

Total  Promoter | 24,09,3 | - 24,0932 | 23.85 | 24,093 |- 24,0932 [ 23855 |-
Shareholding 20 0 5 20 0
(AAXD) -
(AX2)
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Public
Shareholding

Institutions

Mutual Funds - 2 5 = s = N = L

Banks / FI - - - = = E 2 N -

Central Govt. - - - = - < = - “

State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - " s

Venture  Capital | - - E = E = L z =
Funds

Insurance - - = = < = = - .
Companies

FlIs - - - - . - - = -

Foreign  Venture | - - - - - - - s .
Capital Funds

Others (specify) - - - = - = 2 - -

Sub-total (B)(1) - - - = = = - - i

2. Non-Institutions

Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian 36,00.1 |- 36,00,16 | 35.64 | 33,60,7 | - 33,60,79 | 33.275 | -2.370

(i) Overseas 60 ;. I 5 92 ] 2 ; ;

Individuals
(i) Individual
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital up to | 3756 4,89, | 493,356 | 4.857 | 26,884 |4,88,8 |31,77,27 | 31.458 |26.573

Rs. I lakh 600 43 30 3

(i1) Individual

shareholders

holding  nominal

share capital in 35071 |~ |[3597,16 3561 |113L1]- H3LI3 | 11199 |-24.416
excess of Rs 1 lakh | g4 4 5 34 4

Others (Specify) | - TN E - L - - ; ;
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1.NRI - - - - 21481 |- 21481 0.213 0.213
Sub-total (B)(2) 72,01,0 | 489, | 76,90,68 | 76.14 |72,01,8 | 4,88,8 | 76,90,68 | 76.145 | -
80 600 |0 5 50 30 0
Total Public | 72,01,0 | 489, | 76,90,68 | 76.14 | 75,01,8 | 4,88,8 | 76,90,68 | 76.145 | -

Shareholding 80 600 |0 5 50 30 0

(B)=(B)D) +

(B)2)

C. Shares held by | - - - - - - - - -
Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total 96,10,4 | 4,89, | 1,01,00, | 100.0 | 96,11,1 | 4,88,8 | 1,01,00, | 100.000 | -
(A+B+C) 00 600 | 000 00 70 30 000

a) Listing with Stock Exchange
The Equity shares of the Company are currently listed for trading under Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE),
Metropolitan Stock Exchange (MSE) and Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) Limited.

b) General Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting:

Date 24.09.2025

Time 1.00 p.m.

Venue 1, Abdul Hamid Street, One BIS Building, 4th Floor, Room No. 407, Income Tax
Building, Kolkata — 700069

Financial Year 2024-2025

Listing on Stock Exchange BSE LTD, CSE LIMITED, MSE LIMITED
Scrip Code:543914

ISIN No: INE210F01016

M) Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle blower Policy

In accordance with the requirements of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing
Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a “vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy” which provides an
avenue to the Directors and employees of the Company to directly report, their genuine concerns including unethical
behaviour and violation of code of conduct, to the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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N) Shareholder’/Investors’ Grievance Committee

The shareholder’/Investors” Grievance Committee of the Board has been constituted to look into complaints like transfer
of shares, Non-receipt of Dividend etc. The committee is headed by Mr. Avinash Jain, as Chairman, Mr. Shreegopal
Daga and Mr. Rishi Kapoor. No compliant had been received during the year.

0) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of accounting, auditing
and reporting practice of the company and its compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Committee’s
purpose is to oversee the accounting and financial reporting process of the company, the audit of the Company’s Financial
Statements, the appointments of Auditor, Independent Performance and remuneration of the Statutory Auditors. The
committee is headed by Mr. Rishi Kapoor as Chairman, Mr. Shreegopal Daga and Mr. Avinash Jain.

During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the committee were held during the year ended
29/05/2024,14/08/2024,14/11/2024 And 10/01/2025. The composition of the committee and attendance at its
meeting is given below:

Name of Director Category No. of Meetings Held | No. of Meetings Attented
Mr. Rishi Kapoor Independent Director 4 4
Mr. Shreegopal Daga Managing Director 4 4
Mr. Avinash Jain Independent Director 4 4

P) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Committee shall identify the persons who are qualified to became Directors of the Company/ who may be
appointed in Senior management in accordance with the Criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal and also shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance. Committee shall also formulate the
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independent of the Directors and recommend to the Board a
policy, relating to the remuneration, Key Managerial personnel and other employees. The committee is headed by Mr.
Rishi Kapoor, as Chairman, Mr. Avinash Jain and Mr. Amit Lal.

No. of Meeting
During the year the Committee had Four Meeting i.e. on 29/05/2024, 14/08/2024, 27/12/2024 and 11/03/2025.

Name of Director Category No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attented
Mr. Rishi Kapoor Independent Director 4 4
Mr. Avinash Jain Independent Director 4 4
Mr. Amit Lal Independent Director 4 4

Q) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Your Company has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee pursuant to the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 which comprises of three Non-Executive Directors. The committee is headed by Mr. Avinash Jain,
as Chairman, Mr. Shreegopal Daga and Mr. Rishi Kapoor.
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No. of Meeting
During the year the Committee had Two Meeting i.e. on 29/05/2024 & 14/08/2024,

Name of Director Category No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attented
Mr. Avinash Jain Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Shreegopal Daga Managing Director 2 2
Mr. Rishi Kapoor Independent Director 2 2

R) SEBI Complaints Redressal Systems (SCORES)

SEBI has initiated SCORES for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web-based redress system and
online Redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The Company is in compliance with the Scores and redressed
the shareholders complaints well within the stipulated time.

S) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit: -

As stipulated by SEBI, a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is conducted on quarterly basis to reconcile the
total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
and the total issued and paid-up Capital. The audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon are submitted
to the Stock Exchange and is placed before the Board of Directors of the Company.

T) Corporate Identity Number

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate affairs, Government of
India is L65993WB1983PLC036332.

U) Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance

As part of the Green Initiative process, the Company has taken an initiative of Sending Documents Like Notice
calling of Annual General Meeting, Corporate Governance report, Directors Report, audited financial Statements,
Auditor’s Report etc. Physical Copies are sent only to those shareholders who have specifically asked for the same.
Shareholders are requested to register their email id with the registrar and share transfer Agent/Concerned
Depository to enable the Company to send the Documents in electronic form or inform the Company in case they
wish to receive the above documents in paper mode.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For, Swati Projects Limited For, Swati Projects Limited
Shreegopal Daga Amit Lal

Managing Director Director

DIN: 00397379 DIN: 09469579

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th May, 2025
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Annexure-III

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management of M/s Swati Projects Limited presents the analysis of performance of the company for
the financial year ended 31.03.2025 and its outlook for the future. This outlook is based on assessment
of the current business environment. It may vary due to future economic and other developments both in
India and abroad.

1. Global Economic Overview

Global prospects remain extremely unclear one year into pandemic. New virus mutations and therefore
the accumulating human toll raises worries, while increasing vaccine coverage lifts sentiment. The outlook
depends not simply on the outcome of the impact of virus and the effectiveness of vaccines, it
additionally centres on how effectively economic policies are deployed under such uncertain times.

Global growth is projected at 3.2 percent in 2024, moderating to 3.3 percent in 2025.

2. Indian Economic Overview

India’s real GDP growth for FY 2024-25 was 6.50%, which is amongst the highest in leading economies,
as the Indian economy bounced back during the year exhibiting resilience during the pandemic. As the
year progressed, most of the economic indicators such as GST collection, IIP, Exports and UPI
transactions saw an uptick, indicating a steady recovery from the lows of the first quarter of FY 2024-25.

While India's growth outlook for the year ahead remains bright, driven by private consumption and
elevated public spending, but risks remain, the biggest of which is inflation. Higher inflation can curtail
the discretionary consumption andun favourably affect the recovering domestic demand. The ongoing
geopolitical crisis has caused supply chain disruptions which has led to higher commaodity prices; if this
gets prolonged, it can further fuel the inflation. The depreciating Rupee can become another issue as
India is one of the biggest importers of crude oil leading to likely rise in trade deficit in FY 2024-25. As
Rupee depreciates and import prices go up, taming inflation can become an uphill task for the central
bank. A slower than expected global growth recovery may affect the demand for exports.

Nevertheless, the opportunities for growth remain intact driven by strong economic fundamentals,
favourable economic policies (such as PLI scheme, Aatmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan and Startup India
initiative), digital push, demographic dividend and growing global preference for India as an investment
destination. Further, as the Company enters into FY 2024-25, the thrust on capital expenditure in Union
Budget 2024 is a welcome move and expected to push demand through multiplier effect on the economy.
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Given the proactive efforts by the regulator and the push from the government to support growth, the
Company expects the inflationary environment to soften and a large vaccinated population is likely to
contain the impact of subsequent COVID-19 waves, which will give way to robust growth going
forward. This in turn shall spur Changes in internal and external operating environment, digitalization,
technological advancements and agile way of working have increased the significance of Fraud,
Information & Cyber Security and Operational Risks. The Company continues to focus on increasing
operational resilience and mitigation of these risks.

Financial Performance -FY 2024-25

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue from operations 91,05,695 1,12,86,794 1,41,08,701 1,46,87,172
Other Income, net 64,000 - 93,151 12,992
Total Income 91,69,695 1,12,86,794 1,42,01,852 1,47,00,164

Less: Expenditure

Purchase - - 2,92,84,475 -

Change in Inventories - - -5,61,26,103 -
Employee Benefits | 14,65,335 11,80,544 57,92,360 27,09,217
Expenses

Depreciation 10,054 - 6,61,256 8,43,304
Other Expenses 16,36,906 23,59,117 3,12,61,271 37,65,964
Provision and | 82,889 - 82,889 -
Contingencies

Profit / (Loss) before Tax | 59,74,511 77,47,133 32,45,704 73,81,679
Income Tax 15,65,000 19,57,577 15,65,000 19,57.577
Tax for earlier years 32,57,479 - 32,57,479 0
Deferred Tax Assets 769 - -32,835 87,281

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax | 11,52,801 | 57,89,556 -15,43,940 55,11,383
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Other Comprehensive

Income

Gain/(Loss) on FVOCI | (76,72,933) |- (76,72,933) -
equities (Net)

Deferred Tax (Net) 19,31,124 - 19,31,124 -
Total comprehensive

Income attributable

Owners of the Parent - - (48,63,614) -
Non-controlling Interest | - - (2,85,138) -
Total Comprehensive | (45,89,008) |- (51,48,752) -

Income for the period

3. Risk management

The Company has built a robust risk management framework with strong risk fundamentals and continues
to monitor the internal and external risks arising out of macro-economic factors, regulatory changes and
geo-political scenario. The Board of Directors has set the tone at the top by laying down and approving
the strategic plans and objectives for Risk Management and Risk Philosophy.

A comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Framework has been adopted by the Company
which uses defined Key Risk Indicators based on quantitative and qualitative factors. A two-dimensional
quantitative data management tool - Heat Map — has been implemented, which enables the Management
to have a comprehensive view of various identified risk areas based on their probability and impact.

Changes in internal and external operating environment, digitalization, technological advancements and
agile way of working have increased the significance of Fraud, Information & Cyber Security and
Operational Risks. The Company continues to focus on increasing operational resilience and mitigation
of these risks.

4. Internal Audit

The Management has laid down set of standards, processes and structure which enables to implement
internal financial controls across the organization with reference to financial statements and that such
controls are adequate and are operating effectively. Internal Finance control framework has been
established in line with the
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Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) and Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note”).

During FY 2024-25, testing was conducted basis process walkthrough and review of samples as per
documented controls in the Risk & Control matrix. Testing is done for each of the controls with the help
of an independent firm, on behalf of Management confirming the existence and operating effectiveness of
controls over financial reporting. Review was performed on design, adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the controls. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been observed for
inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

5. Industry Structure and Developments

The performance of the Company was satisfactory during the year under review. Your Company net profit of
loss Rs. 11,52,801 on standalone basis while has a net loss of Rs. 15,43,940/- on consolidated basis during the
financial year 2024-2025. Your directors are hopeful to achieve better results in future.

6. Outlook On Opportunities, Threats, Risk and Concerns

As far as the future outlook is concerned, the Company is expected to increase the scope of the NBFC Business
in the future, considering the fact that industrial growth picks up.

The Company is in position to compete with its competitors by better customer services.

7. Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

Your Company is committed to maintaining high standards of internal controls designed to provide accuracy of
information, efficiency of operations, and security of assets. The company has adequate internal controls
commensurate with the size and nature of its operations to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business.
These controls ensure the safeguarding of assets, prevention and detection of fraud and error, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, timely preparation of reliable financial information and adherence to
companies’ policies, procedures and legal obligations. The audit committee of the Board of Directors meets
periodically to review the performance as reported by the auditors.

8. Financial Performance

The company's revenue from operations for the financial year 2024-2025 is Rs. 91,05,695/- as compared to the
previous year of Rs. 1,12,86,794/-. The profit made for the current Financial Year is Rs. 1 1,52,801/- The margin
carned during the year is thin as compared to the previous year due to the reason of stiff competition & Global
recessionary trend. The Directors expect better results in the next coming year.
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9. Human Resources

The group’s people mission to nurture and empower employees who demonstrate both honesty and
high performance in a fair and transparent environment.

10. Cautionary Statement

Statement made in this MD&A describing the group’s objectives, projection’s, estimates, general market
trends, expectations etc., may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the ambit of applicable laws
and regulations. These ‘forward looking statements’ involve a number of risks, uncertainties and other
factors that could cause actual results differ materially from those suggested by the ‘forward looking
statement’.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Swati Projects Limited For Swati Projects Limited
Shreegopal Daga Amit Lal

Managing Director Director

DIN: 00397379 DIN: 09469579

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30'" May, 2025
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CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQULIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and schedule V para C clause 10(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015

To

The Members,

SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

1, ABDUL HAMID STREET,

ONE BIS BUILDING, 4TH FLOOR,

ROOM NO. 407, INCOME TAX BUILDING,,
KOLKATA - 700069

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors
of SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED having (CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332) and having registered office at 1,
ABDUL HAMID STREET, ONE BIS BUILDING, 4TH FLOOR, ROOM NO. 407, INCOME TAX BUILDING
KOLKATA -700069 and (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company
for the purpose of issuing this certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para
C Sub clause 10(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in, as considered necessary and

explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, | here by certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 March, 2025 have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Companies by the SEBI,
MCA or other Statutory Authority as the case may be.

DIN Name of Director Date of appointment in | DESIGNATION
Company
08422654 RISHI KAPOOR 07/05/2019 INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR
00397379 SHREE GOPAL DAGA 01/08/2014 MANAGING DIRECTOR
09469579 AMIT LAL 15/01/2022 INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR
09629214 AVINASH JAIN 30/05/2022 INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR
10654047 SHIKHA GUPTA 11/03/2025 INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR
10944637 PUJA SHAW 11/03/2025 INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

Cont on page 2

Office : Marshall House, 2nd Floor, Room No. 240, 33/1 N.S. Road Pincode: 700001
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SHRUTI AGARWAL

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY
MOBILE : + 91 - 9330826989

EMAIL ID : cs.agarwalshruti@gmail.com

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is responsibility
of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30.07.2025 3
UDIN: A038797G000894773 Shruti Agarwal

Peer Review Certificate No.: 3206/2023 Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No.: 38797
CP No: 14602

Page 2

Office : Marshall House, 2nd Floor, Room No. 240, 33/1 N.S. Road Pincode: 700001
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FORM NO.MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT Annexure-1V
REPORT FORMAT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SWATI PROJECTS LTD

1, ABDUL HAMID STREET,

ONE BIS BUILDING, 4TH FLOOR,

ROOM NO. 407, INCOME TAX BUILDING,,
KOLKATA - 700069

We have conducted the Secretarial SAudit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Swati Projects Ltd (CIN NO: L65993WB1983PLC036332)
(‘hereinafter called the Company’) having Registered Office at 1, Abdul Hamid treet, one Bis building,
4th floor, room no. 407, Income tax building,, KOLKATA - 700069. The Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives whether electronically or otherwise during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions
of:

a) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

¢) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

d) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not Applicable during the audit period)

e) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Office : Marshall House, 2nd Floor, Room No. 240, 33/1 N.S. Road Pincode: 700001
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9)

h)

)

k)

Regulations, 2011

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.
The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 relating to Structural Digital Database.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable during the
audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021 — (Not Applicable during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client — (Not
Applicable during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not
Applicable during the audit period)

m) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 —

(Not Applicable during the audit period)

The Management has identified and confirmed the following Laws as being specifically applicable to the
Company:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Rules, Regulations and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934 and circular, Master circular, directions and notifications, to the extent as
applicable to Non- Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Companies

Non-Banking Financial Company-Systematically important Non-Deposit Taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions 2016

Prevention of Money Laundering Act 2002 and its circulars, notifications.

Anti -Money Laundering Regulation issued by RBI and various circulars and
Guidelines thereunder

The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881

The Indian Stamp Act 1899 and the State Stamp Acts
The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act,2013

Income Tax Act, 1961
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iX.

Goods & Services Act 2017

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards SS — 1 & SS — 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc
The Company has registered with CIBIL has registered itself with other 3 CIC

/the company has filled return with CIC registered as in required.

The Company being the NBFC Company has registered itself with National E- governance
Services Limited (NESL).

Non Compliance with the requirements pertaining to the composition of the Board including
failure to appoint woman director under Section 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and
also paid the penalty of Rs. 3,24,500 for the same.

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has
not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory financial
auditor and other designated professionals.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes being carried out
in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review were made in
compliance with the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder and SEBI LODR.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists

for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

Decisions at the Board Meeting, as represented by the management and recorded in minutes, were
taken unanimously

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company, commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines

We have relied on representation made by the Company, its Officers and on the reports given by
designated professionals for systems and processes formed by the Company to monitor and ensure
compliances under other applicable Act, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

Office : Marshall House, 2nd Floor, Room No. 240, 33/1 N.S. Road Pincode: 700001
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We further report that as per the records, the Company generally filed all the forms, returns, documents
and resolutions as were required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies ('ROC') within the stipulated
time. Further, the company is recommended to take utmost care while filling the forms with MCA.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period under review, there were no major specific events/actions
having a major be any's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc. referred to above.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of

e Public/Rights/Preferential issue of Shares/debentures/ sweat equity
e Redemption/buy-back of securities.

e Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction etc.

e Mer Foreign technical collaborations.

Disclaimer:

We have conducted the assignment by examining the Secretarial Records including Minutes, Documents,
Registers and other records etc., received by way of electronic mode from the Company and could not
be verified from the original records. The management has confirmed that the records submitted to us
are true and correct. This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances on laws / regulations /guidelines
listed in our report which have been complied by the Company pertaining to Financial Year 2024-25.

We are not commenting on the Statutory Compliances whose due dates are extended by Regulators
from time to time or still there is time line to comply with such compliances.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure 1” and forms
an integral part of this report.

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY
Mem No: 38797 | COP: 14602

Date: 26.08.2025
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: A038797G001086305

PEER REVIEW - 3206/2023
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To,

Annexure - 1

The Members,
Swati Projects Ltd

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

CS SHRUTI AGARWAL

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY
Mem No: 38797 | COP: 14602

Date: 26.08.2025

Place: Kolkata

UDIN: A038797G001086305

PEER REVIEW - 3206/2023

Office : Marshall House, 2nd Floor, Room No. 240, 33/1 N.S. Road Pincode: 700001
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of M/is Swati Projects Limited

Reparton the Andit of the Standulone Financial Resulis
Crpindon

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial result of M/s Swati Projects Limited | ‘the Company™),
for the quarter and vear ended March 31, 2025 (hereinafter referred to as the “the standalone financial resulis’),
attached herewith being submitted by the Company pursiant to Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of Indin { Lesting Obligation and Disclosire Requirements) Regulations , 2015.as amended frosm Time fo
time (hereinaficr referred to as “the Listing Regulation'). The standalone financinl result have been initinled vy
s for the purpase of ientification,

In our opinion and to the best of our mformation and according to the explanations given o us. these standalone
financial result:

a) wre presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulntion 33 of the Listing Regulations in this
regard; and

by give true and fair view in conformity with recognition and mesurement principles laid down in the
apsphicable Indian Accounting Standurds {Ind As) and siher accounting pringiples generally accepted in
liddia, of net profit for the vear ended March 31, 2025 and other comprehensive income and other
fimmncial information of tle Cinmpany for the vear ended on that date.

Basis o opinion

We conducted our audit in secordance with the Standards on Auditing (hereinafier referred to as “BAST) nodified
tder section 1430105 of the Compamies Act, 2013 a5 amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as i
Act’). Ourrespansibilities under those SAs are further described in the “Auditors” Responsibilities For the Audit
oF the standalone Financial Results™ section of our report, We are independent of the Lampany in accordince
with the code of Ethics issued by the Institgte of Chartered Accountants of India (herginafter referred to as ‘the
ICAL") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our andit of the standalone financial resulis
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we bave fullilled our other ethical responsibilities
I accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence oheained by
us s sulficient and approprinte to provide a basis for our apinion on the standalone financial resylis.

Key Andit Matters

Rey audit mutters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of mogt significance in our audit of

the Stundalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

muehit of the Standalone Financial Stiements as o whole. and in forming our opinion theseon, and we do not

provide o separnte opinion on these matters: We have deterrmid that there is no the key audit matters 1o be
L TR e,

camunuricated i our peport. Rl
sy e
[ o |ml
.'|1:. _1' = P .|I|
4L o _.':.',r'll'.
et M

BO 14013, Amatpun, Gal No <13, Garti East of Kailash Mew Delty - 110065 M D425811744
Fochar Panchshee! Block-T Flal - W8 128 CTH Road Ambabur Chennsi - S000S8 M GEB4AS5214



Responsibilities of Management und Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Resulis

These stendalone financial results have been prepared on the basis of the standalone financial statements. The
Company s Board of Directors are responsible for the préparation and presentation of these standalone financial
results that give o troe and foir view of the net profit for the year ended March 31, 2025 and other comprehensive
income and other finncial information of the Company in accordance with recognition and measurement
principtes kaid down in Ind AS notified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulstion 33 of the Listing
Regulations.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Compaity and for preventing and detecting. frauds and other irregularities,
selection amd application of appropeiate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasomable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financinl controls,
thit were apernting effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recards, relevant
to the preparstion and presentation of the standalomse Dnancial resuls, that give a true and Gir view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due wo fraud or error,

In preparation the standalone financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the ability
of the Company to continue as o going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the. going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either imtends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

= The Board of Directors is responsible for overseging the fimangial reporting process of the Company.

Auditars, Responsibilities for the Andit of the Standalone Financial Results

Chur objectives are 1o obtain reasonnble assurance about whether the standalone financial resolts as & whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or emror, and to issue an auditors’ report that mcludes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not o guarantee that an sudit conducted n
accordance with SAs will always detect @ material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fruud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the azeregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these standalone financial results,

As part of an audit in sccordance with SAs, we exercise professionnl judgement snd maintain professional
skepticism throughout the sudit. We also:

®  |[dentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the standolone fmancial nesults. whether due o fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures respongive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud 35 higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
international cmissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® (htain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the aircumstunces. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing an
opinion through a separate report on the complete set of standalone fnencial stastements on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone finencial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of sceommting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management and the Bourd of Directors.

# Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncertainty exisis related to events or conditions that

may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conglude that a
material uncerialinty exists, we are required 10 drsw attentiopef aurpuditors’ report to the reluted disclosures in




#
the standalone financial resulis or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions
arg based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o cease 10 the date of our auditors” report. However, fiture events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evalunte the overall presentution, structure and contemt of the standalone financial results. including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial results represent the underlying transactions and events in &
manner that achieves fair presentation

Materinlity 15 the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the économic decizions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Stndalone
Financiul Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors (i) in
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 1o evaluate the effect of
wiry identified misstatements in the Standalone Finnncial Statements.

We commumicate with those charged with governance of the Company regarding. among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the andit and significamt audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
mmternal control thet we identify dunng our audit,

We alse provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all refationships and other maters that
may remsonahly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

. Repori on Ohiber Legal and Regulatory Regulrements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government
of Imdia in erms of sub-section {1 1) of section 143 of the Companics Act, 2003, we give in the “Ansexure A”

" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3 ) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and cbtaived all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary (or the purposes of our audit.

{b} Iin our opunion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books

(¢} The Balsnce Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Staterment of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Stmtement dealt with by this Report agree with the books of account

{d) In our apinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section |33 of the Act

(e} On the basis of the wrillen representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in teems of Section a4 (2) of the Act.

(1 With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operming effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”,

{z) With respect o the other mamers 10 be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
ol section 197 16) of the Act, s amended:

In our opinien and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given lo us. the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the vear.is in accordance with the Provisions of section 197 of the
Act




(1) With respect to the other matters to be incloded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Awdit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

nil, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Invesior Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, we report that the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31st March,
2025, which has the feature of recording an audit rail (edit log) facility. The audit trail feature has
been operated throughout the year, including from 22nd May, 2024, in complisnce with the
requirements of Rule 3(1) of the Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as nmended).

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order’) issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Acl, we pive in *Annexure B' a statement on the mialiers specified in
Parageaphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For M MODI & ASSOCTIATES
Chartered Accountanis
FRN: 319141E

M K Modi

Partner

Membership Mo, 054366

UDIN: - 0 054864 SPIMEPY2642
Place: - Kolkatn

Date: - 30.05.2025




Annexure A o the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial satements of M/s,
Swati projects Limited (the "Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. In our opinion, the Company has, in all
material respects; adequate infemal financial controls with reference to the standalone (inancial statements and
such mternal financial controls were operating eMectively a5 at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial
conirols with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reperting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {the "Guidance Note"),

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finanelal Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalane finaneial
staternents criteria estublished by the Company considering the essential components of internal contral stuted
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
nternal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuning the orderly and efficient conduct of its

 busmess, including adberence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention mnd
detection of frauds and emors, the sccorscy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013 {hereinafter referred
10 a5 the “Act™),

Anditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference (o the
stamdalone financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 10 the extent applicabile 1o an
tudit of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obrain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference 1o the standalone
financial stvements were established and muintained and whether such comtrols operited effectively in all
material respects, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence ahout the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference tothe standalonie financial staterments and their operating efTectiveness,
Cur widit of intemal Anancial controls with reference to the standalone financial stutements included obtaining
an understanding of such intemal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evalunting the design and operating effectivencss of infernal control

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company s infernal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements i a process designed
1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliahility of financial reporting und the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generlly secepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenanee of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide reasanable assurnnce that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in sccordance with generally accepled
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in sccordnnee
with authorisations of management and direct E,E, mpany; -and (3) provide reasonable assurance
i
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regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised scquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have o material effect on the financial statemnents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Becausze of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference 1o Standalone Financial
Statements, including the. possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material
misstatements due to error or frand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference 1o Standalone Financial Statements to future pericds are subject 1o the
risk that the imemal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements may become insdequate
hecause of changes In conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, o the best of cur information and according to the explanations given o us, the Company has,
in all matcrial respects, adequiste intemal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
and such intermal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements were operating
effectively as at 315t March, 2025, based on the criteria for intemal financial control with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements established by the Company considering the essential components of intemnal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indu.

For M MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chariered Accountanis
FRN: J19141E

M K Maodi

Partner

Mem bership Mo, 054366

UDIN: - 9 S0EAZgL BMMIapy 0642
Place: - Kolkatn

Date: - 30.05.2025




Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report

i Referred to i parngraph 2 under *Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’ section of the our
report to the members of the Mis, Swati Projects Limited of even date)

With reference 10 the Annexwre B referred to in the Independent Auditors Report to the members of the company
on standalone financial statements for the year ended 31* March, 2025, we report the following:

(1)

{ii)

(i)

{iv}

{v)

{wi)

{vii)

The company i# maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
inmtervals, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and the same have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

The company does not own any immovable properties.

The Company is in the business of providing non-banking financial services and does not have any
physical inventarics. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (i) of the order is not applicable to the

GO pany .

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has given loans to five
parties, covered i the register maintaimed under Section 189 of the Companmes Act, 2013, The
Owtstanding balanee of the losn was 2,07.22 188/-

In our opimion and according o the informaton and explanations given (o us, the company has
complicd with the provision of Section 185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans,
Investment, sunmaniess and securiiy.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directive issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions Section 73 10 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Act and the companies { Acceptance of Deposit) Rules; 2015 with regard to the deposit accepted
from the public are not spplicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been spacified by the Central Government under Section
148(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thas,
reporting under Clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company,

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Centrul Govermment under Section
T48{1) of the Companics Aet, 2013 for the business activities carried cut by the Company. Thus,
reporting under Clause 3(vi) of the onder is not applicable to the Company.

i According to the information and explanations given 1o us, in respect of statutory dues:
b. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax and other material

statutory duwes in arrears as at March 31, 2025for a period of more than six months from the
date they became pavable.

€. According 1o the information and explanation given 1o us; Income Tax demand of Rs. 32,

44,500/~ for Asst, Years 201 5-16 is being disputed by the company and the Appeals are pending
before the Commessioner of Income Tax (Appeal).




(wiii)

()

%)

(xi)

{xii)

(x1ii]

(xiv)

{xv)

[xvi)

[xwii)

i}

(xix}

(xx)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not surrendered or disclased any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tiex Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of leans or borrowings
ar in the payments of interest thereon to any lender.

According 1o the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declured & wilfil defanlter by nny bank ar
financial institution or government or govemment aothority.

I aur opinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us by the management,
the Company hkas not taken or applied or given to any term loans.

According to the information and explanations given o us and on an overall examination of the
bulance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used
lor long term purposes by the Compiny.

According 1o the information and explanation given to us and on an everall examination of the
standatone. financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any eatity or person on account of or fo meet the obligations of its subsidiarics, as
defined in the Act. The Company does not hold any fnvestment in any associate or joint venture (as
defined in the Act) during the year ended 3 Fat March, 2025

According (o the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not rised loans during the year on the phedge of sccurities held in its
subsidiaries (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not taken any loan either from Banks or financisl institutions or from the
government and has not issued gny debentures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not raised monies by way of initial public offer or further pubiic
offer including debt instruments and term loans, Accordingly, the provision of clanse 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upen.

According 1o the information and explanations given to s and on the basis of pur examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not issued preferential allotment or private placement
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvii) is not applicable.

Based upon the sudit procedures perfonmed and the informastion and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or
employess has been noficed or repored during the year.

According  the information and explanations given o us, o repart under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the anditars in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Govermment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration has been
paid or provided in accordance with the requisite mandate by the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.




(aay  Inour Opimion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Thercfore, the provision of clause 3 {xxi) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{axii}  In our opinion, all ransactions with the relited parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Companies Act. 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statermnents as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xxiii)  According to the infoemation and explunations given by the manazement, the Company fas not
entered inte any non-cash transactions with directors ar persons connected with i, Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (xxiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(xxrv)  The Company has been already registered under Section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

{(xav}  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the cument and in the inmediate Iy preceding financial
wear,

(xxvi) There is no any resignation as Statutory Auditors during the vear, Accordingly, clause 3 {xxvi) of
the Order is not applicable,

{axvil) According to the informaution and explanations given to us and on the basls of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information sccompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which cause us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists us on the date of the asdit report that the Company iz not cipable of meeting its
linbilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one vear
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an asstirance as 1o the future vinbility
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up o the date of the audit
report and we neiber give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabifites falling due within a
period of one vear from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xxviil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the Company.

Fur M MODT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 319141 F

M K Modi

Partner

Membership No. 054366

UDIN: - QEDE“L?E& L s P}J 2642
Place: - Kollain

Drates - 300052025




SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332
1. ABDUL HAMID STREET, ONE BIS BUILDING, 4THFLOOR,
ROOM NO. 407, INCOME TAX BUILDING, KOLKATA 700069

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2025
Amaunt n B, (")

Amount in Rs, ('00)

Particulars Note Mo, | AS AT MARCH 31, _’.'_.!:'t_li A5 AT MARCH 3]=Mi
1. ASSETS
{a) Cash and Cah Equivalants 2 58,238.58 295365
1 Receivables -
¢) Loass 3 20722158 12,17 62583
d) Investments 4 0.50.937.13 50,255,00
e) (nher Financial Asscts 5 2,753.76 2127231
otal Financial Assets i2.28,151.35 12,92, 106,79
(8) Current tax swsets (Met) 6 8.303.12 &,202.67
i) Deferred Tax Assets (fet) 7 19, 305.66 -
(¢} Property, Plunt and Equipment B 245 46 -
Total Non Finnncial Assets 27.858.24 6,292 67
TOTAL ASSETS 12,56, 08,59 11,598 3. 46
‘I. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
in) Trade payoables 9 047 -
Tatal Finnncial Linbilites .07 P
i) Current Tas Linhilities (Met) i - 463 60
b IProvisions 11 BIR B9 -
¢ Deferred Tox Lisbilithes g - 1327
o) Other non-financinl Habitities 12 6,294.70 3,147,538
Toial Mon Financinl Lishiliies 712159 362345
1. EQUITY
(&) Equity Share Capital I3 10, 10,000.00 1, 10,000,060
() Other Equity 14 2 38 885,93 2.84.776.0)
Total Equiiy 1248 88593 12094 6010
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 12,56,00M.59 12,98 30046

Significant Acconnting Policy
The accompanying notes 1 ta 54 are integral part of
Fimancial Sintemeais

For M Maodi & Aseocintes

FOR SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

o et Rt

|Chartered Accountnnts : Shreegopol Daga Amit Lal

FRN: JI9141E Y, Munaging Director Director

AAD 2 I Q DIN:00397379 DIN: (9469579

MK = . -Tﬂf_ﬂi" 5

Partaer o iy Lkt bty
Membership No, 054366 Ravi Todi Piyash Lakbotia

Company Secretury Chief Finnmelal Officer

Mace Kolkata

Dated: The 20th of May, 2015

UDIN:-Z5D LU E & BGUMT P64 |




SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

CIN: L65993WBI1983PLC036332
1, ABDUL HAMID STREET, ONE BIS BUILDING, 4THFLOOR,
ROOM NO. 407, INCOME TAX BUILDING, KOLKATA T0006%
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 315t March 2025

Amount in Rs. ("M} Amount in Rs. ("M
Sr., For the year ended For the year ended
No St NoteNo.|  vqarch 312028 March 31,2024
1 |Revenue from Operations 15 91,056.95 1.12,867.94
11 |Other Income 6 640,00 -
Il [Total Income (1+11) 91 69695 1.12.867.94
| Expenses:
Employee Benefit Expense 17 14,653,335 | 1.805.44
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 18 100,54 -
Other Expenses 19 16,369.06 23,591.17
Provisions and Contingencies 20 RIH.BY -
Total Expenses 31.,951.84 35,396.61
IV |Profit before tax 50 745.11 T7.471.33
V |Tax expense: :
{ 1) Current tax 15,650,00 19.575.77
{2} Tax for earlier years 32.574.79 -
{3)Deferred Tax (1.69) .
48.217.10 .
VI |Profit{ Loss) for the period V-V 11,528.01 57.895.56
V11 [Oiher C
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or
s
Giain A Loss) on FVOCT equities (Met) (76, 729.33)
Deferred Tax Net 19.311.24
(57.418.09) :
VIl Total Comprehensive Income for the period | VI+VII {45,890.08) 57,895.56
IX |Earning per equity sharc: 2]
i 1) Basic 011 0.57
(2) Diluted 0.11 0.57
Signuificant Accounting Policy 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 54 are integral part of FOR SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
Financial Statements
For M Modi & Associates v
[Chartered Accountants = _ Shrecgopal Daga Amit Lal
FRN: 319141E ¥ il Managing Director Director
= Q' SR :
2\ R Tees T Lbborhin
MK i “’l'%:;;__: Ravi Todi Piyush Lakhotia
witser e Company Secretary iChiel Finnncial CiTicer
Membership No. 054366
Place Kolkata
UDIN:- 7 50545944 B GPYe42 Dated: The 30th Day of May, 2025




SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332
E 1, ARIMIL HAMID STREET, ONE BIS BEUTLDING, 4THFLIMR,
RO O 487, INCOME TAX DUILIMNG, EOLEATA TIMES
Stamdabone Cash Flow Statensent for the Y ear Ended 305 March 2015
Amsusnl in Ba, ('80) Amound in Rs (00
PARTICULARS AMOLUNTIRS) As @t 31032025 As ol 31.03.2024
N [CANH FLOW FROM OFERATING AL TIVITIES
feei Profli Before Tax AN TIATLIS
Adjustmenis for:
Provision for Sndend Amsets HIZHY
Depreciation 106,54 ;
Enterust Reveived (R R (1,012,867 540
Interess Paid 1 06
Treris shit will pot be reclossified it 7 i TR, T30 .
= 0167 440%.32)
Oiperating Profid hefore Working Capital Changes (L7, 7142 V30755
Adjusiments for:
i IncrenseTiecreane in Trde Roccivables =
DecreasetInerease) in lnvestment (AR AR 1T}
Decrease’Incnense in Ciher Camend Asseis {20 A5 i
Increset Decrease ) in short Termn HBorrowings . .
Incremse Decreuss | in Puvabis {07 1.G1H2K
Tocrensei Decrease) in linbilities 314712 -
%08, 543,39
Cash geasraied lrom aperutions i LD, 0 D60 | LT L
Rovsckoie ok 43 68T 50 220164
Irigi Cash Now from Operating activities T H i S ) | TCERTTRED |
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
rrurr.-lm-r of Fixed Assels {35000 2
i Incresse ' Dioercuse in Lomn B, Vi A0 0 1| 3,089, 19
mhir Fimancial Az VR IR 55 {5, THLFT
Imernes Receival 91,659,423 11256754
Net Cnsh usedd in |nvesting setivities 11.20,341,92 S5 ORT 6 |
O [CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Precends from lssue of Tquity Shase o -
Euxpemss for Incroase in Authorised Capioal = a
bmneeest Fasl * |3|?5'.[h51
Mt Cash wiad bn (inancing wetivities . 309
Net increase in cash & Cath Equivalents 98,284.93 1,193.19
Cipeming Cash and Lash equiviiems 195148 [RRT
Closimg Crshoand Cash egoivabonts IR 23058 2,951,658
Cash & Cavh Equinalents
P im Hnd = .44
LCash ul Aonk L1, ] J 051,21
equlvalents as stated 58,135.55 195348
FOR SWAT] PROJECTS LIMITED
For 8 Madi & Aasocinies
iU hartentd Accounianis
FRN:; 3181 E
MRz /50
e R,
L Py i B
e (ET i TSI
Partmer | BT
| vlembership Sn. B54366 b
5,'-\.:‘5%2-..
| .:.___' o
weil: Thie Jikth Dy af May, 2025

mN- DEnE 4988 BMAOPY 26417
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SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A, CORPORATE INFORMATION

Swani Projects Lamited {“the Company™) is 1 Non-Banking Financial Compamny incorpareted under the provisions
of Compuanies Act, 1938, s listed in Caleuta Stock Exchenge (CSE) Limited, BSE {formerly Bombay Slosik
Exchange) Limited and Metropalitan Stock Exchange of India (MSE} Limited, baving its regisiered office and
principal place of business at 1, Abdul Hamid Street, Ome BIS Bullding, 4th Floor, Room Mo, 407, Income Tax
Building, Kolkata TO0069,

B SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L

Hasis of Accounting

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian aceounting standard
1o comply with accounting standard specified under section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 and the relevan
provisions of the companies Act, 2015 as applicable.

Revenue Recognition-

Revenve bs recopnized to the extent that it is probable that the sconomic benefits will Now to the company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. [n addition, the followng criterin musl also be met before revenoe s
reoinided:

o Interest ind other diies are accounted on secrual basis except in the case of non-perfurming |oans where
il s recognized upon realization. as per the income recaznition and asset classification norms prescribed
by the RBL

Use of Estimates:

Ihe preperation of Financial Statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make
estimates and sssumptions considered in the reporied amounts of assets and liabilitics (including contingent
Liakilitics) und the reporied income and expenses during the year, The management belbeves that the estimates
used in the prepantion of financial statements are prudent and reasonable Future results could differ due wo these
cstimates and the difference between the actunl results and estimates-ate recognized in the years in which the
results are known and materialized.

Invishments
Current [ivestment zre valued at Murket Value,

Emplovment Benefits
Letve salary is accounted for on the basis of leave due 10 employees at te end of the year, No provisions for
leave sabury is made as there is ne credit of leave 1o the employees

Termination Henefits

Ferminmtion Benelits fike gratuity et¢ gre provided in the account in respect of employes when they became
eligible for the same, Mo provisions for gratuity has been made in respect of employees for the year s they have
not put in completed year of service &s per provisions of Ciratuity Act.

Taxes on Income

g} Cusrent tax is the amount payuble on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with, the
provisions of the [neome Tax Act. 1961,

hi Deferred tix is recognized on timing differences; being the  dilTerences between the taxisbbe incomes and
accotinting income that o ginate in one period and are capable of reversal in one-or more subsequent periods.
Dheferred 1ax assets subject 10 the consideration of prience ure recoqried and carried forward only to the
extert thal there is n reasonable certainty that sulficient future taxabie income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized.




SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

iy’

1l

Earnings por Share

The Company repeets basic and diluted earnings per shase in sccordance with Indian Accounting Standards-33,
Eurnings per Share, issued by the Institute of Charered Accountants of India. Basic earmings per equity share
have been computed by dividing net profitifter tax by the welghted average numbxer of equity shares autstanding
fior The period.

Prow isiens and Conlingencics
Prowision against Loans

o Prosisions is made in sccondance with the RB1 guldelines applicable to non- performing loans, In addition,
Provision is made in gecordance with the Provisioning policy of the company agiinst non- performing loans.

» A ueneml provision is made ot 0.4% of the outstanding Standard Assets in accordanc: with the RBI

muidelines.
Other Provisions

s A Provision is recognized when the company has 4 present obligation &= a resull of Past events and it 13
prohable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the ehligation in respect of which a relinble
estimate can be made. Provisions {excluding retirement berefits) are not discounted to their present value Lt
are dotermined based on the best estimate required to settle the abligmion as a1 the Balance Sheet date. These
ire reviewed ol each Balance Sheet date and adjusted 10 reflect the currént best estimates. Contingent
Itabilities nre disclosed separately.

Sepment Reporting

Thie Company Operates Solely in one Geogritphic Segment and hence no separate informatkon {or Geographic
segment wise disclosure is required.

. Previous vear figures have been rearmnged or recast wherever necessary, however the zame are nol sirictly

comparable with that of the current year us the previous year,

Cush and cash equivabenis

Cash end Cash Equivalents comprise cash and cash-on-deposit with banks and financial Instingions. The
Compuny considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity m the date of purchase of three
months or bess and that are resdily convertible to known ameunts of cash 1o be cash equivalents

Cash Flow Stulemenl

Cash flows are reporred using the indirect method, whereby profit before 10y is adjusted lor the effects of
transictions  of & non-cash nature, any deferrals or aeeruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income oF expenses associated with investing or financing cash Nows, The cash Mlows from operating.
inviesting and financing activities of the Group are assignid.
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Motes Farming Integral Part of the financial stalemenis
AN amounts are in odian Hundred Rupees unless otherwise sinted
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’ BWATI FROJECTS LIMITED
NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDVED 3st March, 2028
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Independent Audirors® Repaort

Po The Members of Mis Swati Projects Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the ccompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s, Swati Projects [imited
(*the Company™}, and its Subsidiaries (the Company and jts subsidiaries together referred 1o % the
“Liroup™) which comptise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as af March 31, 2025, the Consolidated
statement of Profit and [oss {including Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of
Charnges in Equity and Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended, and notes 1o
the consolidated financial statenvents, including a summary of the significam aecounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 10 a5 “the consolidated financial statements™),

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, (he
aloressid Stnement include the results of the following entities:

| S, | Name of Entity Relationship with the Holdirg |
| No. | Sl e Company = |
| Radhashree Roadsters Private Limited Subsidiary e
i - —r&ﬂﬂ?@ww __ﬁpTrlm:m_s  Private Limited - Eubsidia_r:.‘
| Subsidiary |

In eur opinden and to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013
(“the Aet”™) in the manner o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards preseribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Aczounting Standards) Rules. 201 3. 18 amended, (~[nd AST) and other aceounting principles genera| Iy
aceepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash llows for the yesr ended on that date X

BO . 114113 Amiilpam, Gall Mo -14, Garhi East of Fanlaah, New Db . 110065, M S 5511249
Kochar Panchahesl Block1 Flat V8. 128 CTH Road. Ambatiue Chesnnal . GODOSS, M 9884855214



Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidajed financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilitics under those SAs are furthor
deseribed in the Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finagneial Statemenis
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chantered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are refevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAL's Code of Ethics. We beljeve that the audil evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
SLElements,

Key Audit Matters

kv audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current year, These matters were addressed
i the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have determined that
there s no matters 1o be the key audit matiers to be communicated in Our report.

Oither Information

The Group Managemen! and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Group annual report, but does not inelude the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The antugl report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report,

Ohur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
nof express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated finuncial stalements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so. consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations,

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Slatements

The Group management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Campanies Aet, 2013 (*the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of aftairs, profitloss and other comprehensive
meone, changes in equity and cash Aows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, incloding the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
' i 5] sEleEnaiiag of the assets of the Company and for




preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records; relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Group ability to continue as 8 going concern, disclosin g. as applicable, matters related
1o going concern and nsing the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends 1o liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group financial reporting process.

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Andit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as o whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and {0 issue an auditor’s
ceport that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is n high level of assurance, but is not g
guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstotements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of usefs
lithen on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mainain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures respensive (o those risks.
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions.
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial cantrols relevant to the audit in order to diesign
audlit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section | 43{3)(1) of the AcL,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

% Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of aecounting
estimites and related disclosures made by manapement.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going
concerit. 1t we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we have required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial slatements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify pinion. Our conclusions are hased on the audit




- evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlving transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Muteriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial sistements. that.
individually or in aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluste the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements,

We communicate with those charped with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related saferuards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
are of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are thesefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auglitor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely mare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonsbly be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such
commumication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our awdit, we report that;

i We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our sudit, ”

b. In aur opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group sis
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

¢. The Consolidated Bulance Sheet, the 'Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes of Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
aceount,




d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

¢, Chn the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Group as on
March 31, 2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164{2) of the Act

£ With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 143
consolidated financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such
contrals, refer to our separate report in *Annexure A'. Our report expresses an unimedificd
apinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Group internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

¢. With respect to the other matiers 1o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given
w0 us, the remuneration paid by the Group 1o its directors during the vear is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act,

h.  With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor™s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended. in our opinion
nd to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us: .

(8 The Group did not have any pending litigations which may have an impact on
the financial position of the Company in its standalone financial statement.

(ii)  The Group did net have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
tor which there are any material foreseeable losses.

{ili)  The Group is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Eduestion and
Protection Fund

Based on our examination, which included test checks, we report tho the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial vear ended 31st March,
2025, which has the feature of recording an audit trail (edit log) facility. The sudit trail feature has
been operated throughout the year, including from 22nd May, 2024, in compliance with the
requirements of Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as smended).




With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Reporty Order, 2020 (“CARO™) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143( 11 of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO
reports issued by us and the auditors of respective companies included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements which are companies incorporsted in India, 1o which reporting under CARC is applicable,
as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that in respect of those companies where
audits have been completed under Section 143 of the Act, there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said compunies included in the
Consolidated Financial Swtements,

For M MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartersd Accountanis
FRM: 319141E

AL

MK ¥odi

Martnmer

Membership No. 054366

UDIN: - 250842 C40MMAPZ 506G
Plaee: - Kollta

Dute: - JLO52025




“Annexure A™

To The Independent Auiditor's Report
| Rederred 1o i pargraph 1(F) under *Repont on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ ssction of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Finaneial Statements
under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet™)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidmted Financial Statements of Swati Projects Limited
{hereinafter referred 1o as the “Parent™) as of and for the vear ended 31" March, 2025, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent and
its subsidinry companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Munagement®s Responsibility for Internal Financial Conirols

I'he respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on the intermal control with reference 1o
Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential componernts of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Uver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
limancial controls that were operuting effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and eompleteness of the accounting records,
andd the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Chur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference 1o
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our aodit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note vm Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the ICAT and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an apdit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the sudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained
ad i such controls operated effectively in all materal respects. Our audit involves performing
procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements. assessing the risk that
nmaterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
confrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures select g, the auditor’s judgement,




including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, in terms of their repons referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent, its subsidiary companics, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Group internal financial control with reférence to consolidated financial statement 15 @ process
designed 10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Group internal control with reference to consolidated {inancial
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of recards that, in
rensonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the
group; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit
preparation of consolidated fnuncial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group are being made only in accordance with
auihorizations of the management and directors of the Group; and (3) provide reascnable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Group
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Siglemenis

Recause of the inherent limitations of internal financinl controls with reference to consoliduted
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management overnde of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
Lo future periods are subject o the risk that the interpal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Crpinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the Group
hus, in all materinl respects, an adequate internal finaneial controls system with reference to
consolidated FArancial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial staternents were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with
reference to consolidated financial stmtements criteria established by the Group considering the
essential camponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls with reference 1o standalone financial statements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.




Other Matter Paragraph

The statement includes the financial result of Subsidiaries Company s for the period from st Apsil
202410 3]st March 2025 respectively, as considered in the statement. in respect of a subsidiary, whose
financial results have not been reviewed by us. These financial results have been reviewed by the other
auditor whose repart have been furnished to us by Management and our report on the statement, in s
far as it related to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the associate, is based solely on
the report of other msditor and the procedure performed by us as stated above.

For M MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FEN: 319141E

Membership No, 054366

UDIN: - D SnS4344 MMMIPZEIGG
Pliace: - Kolkata

Dade: - 30,05,2025



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN: L65993WB1983PLC036332
1, ABDUL HAMID STRE ET, ONE BIS BUILDING, 4TH FLOOR,
ROOM NO. 407, INCOME TAX BUILDING, KOLKATA 700069
Consolidted Balance Sheet as ai 31si March, 2025
Amsuni in Rs. ['00) Amouni n s, ()
Parthculars Moie Mo, AS AT MARCH 31, 1ars AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
I ABSETS
Financial Asceis
i Cash and Cash Equivalanis 2 T1.207.58 12,043.1)
b Reccivahles 1 | AT7.23 74456
1} Linmmis 1 1165, 757,12 2 1T625.83
(d} Inmvesimenis 5 B2% OHG T4 WY |
(&) Oiher Fimancial Assets fi I.-I4,I_[.|!_.ﬂ1 091959
11,3637, 19 158410, )
T 1337, 102 i
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Consolidated Statement of Profil and Loss for the Year ended 315t March 2025
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 315t Murch 2025
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SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Swatl Progects Limited (“the Company”™) is a listed entity incorperated in India, having it registered office and pringipal
place of business at |, Abdul Hamid Street, One RIS Building, 4th Floor, Room Mo, 407, Income Tax Building, Kolkats
TGS,

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B.l BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The Censolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following assets and
liabilities which have been measured a1 fair value amount:

(i) Mon-Current Investments

The Consolidated Anancial statemernts of the company have been prepared o comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

The company has Two Subsidiary,
Company s Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indlan Hundred Rupess ().

The Previous year figures have been regroupedireclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the current Vear
[resentation.

1.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION AND CONSOLIDATION PROCEDURE

The Censolidated Financial Stetements have been prepared on the following basts;

fa) The financial statements of the Holding company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line hasiz by
adding together like fiems of assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminuting imra-
group balances and intra- group transactions.

i) Profits or losses resulting from intra- group transactions that are recopnised in assets, such a3 Inventory and
Property, Plant and Equipment’s, are eliminated in full,

(€} In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue ftems are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year, All
assets and Habilitics are converted at the rates peevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference mrising on
consolidation is recognised in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR).

(d} Goodwill represents the difference between the company's share in the net worth of subsidiaries and the cost af
wequisition at esch point of time of making the investment in the subsidiaries,

(e} The audited unaudited financinl statements of foreign subsidiaries / joint ventures’ associates have been prepined
in accordance with the Genemily Accepted Accounting Principles of its Country of Incorpeeation or IND AS.

(£ The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using unifoem sccounting policies for like
transactions and other svents in similar circumstances.

(<3 The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary Iz offset (eliminated) against the pareiit*s
portion of equity in each subsidiary,

il The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investmenis in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of its
mssets less linbilities a5 on the date of disposal is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss being the
profit or loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary.

(i) The Group accounts for its share of post - acquisition chinges in net usscts of associates and joint ventures afier
eliminating unrealised profits and losses resulting from trancactions between the Group and its associates snd joint
veniures.

() Mo Controlling Interest’s share of profit /loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted
against the income of the Group in ceder to arrive at the net income astribitable to sharcholders of the company,




SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

k) Mot Contrelling Interest's share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified nd presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheoet.

G OTHER SIFGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These are set cut under “Significant Accounting Policies of standalone financial statements.”
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SWATI PROMECTS LIMITED
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Notes Forming Intepral Fart of the Nmancial ststemenes
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